REGULAR MEETING
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NASHVILLE
COUNTY OF BERRIEN
JANUARY 14, 2008

INVOCATION: Dwight Bishop
PLEDGE: Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mayor Travis Harp
WELCOME: Mayor Travis Harper

ROLL CALL: Members of the City Council present included Aiden Michael
Richbourg, Billy Retterbush, J. P. Watts, Bill Tarn and Scott Stalnaker,
Alderwoman Pat Sutton, and Mayor Travis Harper.

STAFF PRESENT: Henry Yawn, Tina Haughton, Chief Jimmy Claytoonmimy
Davis, Buck Warren, John Reynolds, Peter SchulizyesAdams, City Manager
Mandy Luke, and Attorney Mitchell Moore.

OTHERS PRESENT: Keith Stone, Nichole Robinson, Fern Turner, Amon

Carter, Dwight Bishop, Bill Alley, Patrick GarndgJaine Shiver, James Eubanks,
Randall and Faye Milton, Joe Barkman, Derrick Joifaul Hart, Curtis Dauvis,

Clay Davis, Robert Fackler and family.

ADOPTION OF MINUTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING: Alderman
Richbourg made a motion to approve the minutes. mb&on was seconded by
Alderwoman Sutton, and the motion carried unanirtyous

ADOPTION OF FORMAL AGENDA- City Attorney Mitchell Moore asked the
Council to add a brief executive session to thendgeAlderman Richbourg made
a motion to accept the Agenda with the change. ildenan Sutton seconded the
motion, and the motion carried unanimously.

SWEARING IN CEREMONIES

City Attorney Mitchell Moore was asked by the Cillerk Johnny Hall, who is
under the weather, to stand in for him and sweénarCity’s newly elected

council members for post 4, 5, and 6. Attorney Motmid the group this is the first
swearing in ceremony Mr. Hall has missed in twemgrs and he wishes he could
have been here for this tonight. Mitchell askedtS8talnaker, Michael



Richbourg, and Billy Retterbush to stand before Bovhe could swear them in. He
said instead of swearing them in one at a time dn@dMike to swear them all in at
once. Mitchell administered the solemn duties mlenew Council member. Each
new Council member took the oath and was swornafftoe.

SPECIAL RECOGNITION

The City of Nashville’s Fire Chief Buck Warren wadtto give special recognition
to Fireman Robert Fackler. He said this year Mckiex was awarded at the Fire
Department’s Christmas Party for being the mosstantling fireman for the year
of 2007. Buck said we based this award on the nuwibealls and drills the
firemen attended. He said out of 171 fire calls Fackler answered 145 of them
and rode in the fire truck 39 times to the calls.44did out of 52 fire drills Mr.
Fackler attended 50 of them. Buck said althouglpresented this award to Robert
Fackler at our Christmas party, we wanted him todeegnized before the City
Council tonight for his hard work and achievements.

OLD BUSINESS

1. Speed Bumps’ Policies and Procedure$ditchell Moore said a rough
draft on the Policies and Procedures is includgdenCouncil’'s agenda
packet and he asked for the group’s input. Alderamer said item
number two of the policies and procedures whictestano speed bump will
be installed on any street less than seven huridetdn length unless 90%
of the residents residing on said street execat@dttion for the
installation of the speed bump. He said if we rez|@0% on streets less
than 700 feet, we will prevent a lot of short stsaa residential areas from
having a speed bump. Alderman Turner said whempbkesto some of the
Police Officers none of them said the speed bungre & danger to anyone,
only that they were deterrent to speeders, whithagurpose for the speed
bumps. He said the percentage needs to be lonei&sb. Alderman
Stalnaker said we really don’t want to handicapstihert streets and 70% of
the residing residents would be good for all theeds. Mitchell said he
would like for the council to consider item numbgesd 3, which | put in
under exigent circumstances. Item one reads spgagdwill be limited to
residential areas only unless there were extergiaiiroumstances. Item
three which is also exigent circumstances readspred bumps will be
installed closer than two hundred feet of a cunva stop sign, because
theoretically a curve or stop sign should act sagesed reducer. Mitchell
said this Policy and Procedure for the installabbspeed bumps is just part



of the solution. The City also needs to tighteronghe speeders in
residential areas. Alderman Richbourg said we neettange item number
two to 70% instead of 90%. Alderman Turner madeoéian to change
item number two to 70% of the residents residingaid street. Alderman
Retterbush seconded the motion, and the motioredannanimously.
Mayor Harper added any street which has two or rapesd bumps; the
bumps need to be 500 feet apart. Mitchell said beldvadd that to the
Policy and Procedures. Alderman Turner said we teethrify “residential
areas”, because some of our residential areamaraak routes. Mitchell
said we need to also take in consideration the atngar new schools will
have on the traffic flow. He asked for Council’'sméssion to contact DOT
and have them do a traffic count on the streetsi¢veschools will impact
the flow of traffic. Alderman Turner asked Mitchélhe would also ask
them about the study on the alternate truck rdweg promised the City in
order to get trucks out of the middle of town. Majfarper asked Mitchell
if a vote was needed on the Policy and Procediigshell said at this time
the concerns the Council has need to be addressed\fderman
Richbourg added we also need a petition and somefsiormat needs to
be available for the Clerk’s office. Alderman Rebiesh said we need to
appoint someone who can verify property ownerssagigiatures of the
residents who are signing the petition. Aldermame€usaid that
responsibility needs to fall upon our code enforeetnThe rest of the
Council agreed Henry Yawn the City Code Enforceulddandle all
petitions for speed bumps. Mitchell said, subjedhe changes and the
addition to the Policy and Procedure, it shoulghiesfactory and | will get
up the application to put the Code Enforcer in ghaf the procedure.
Mayor Harper said, also if we feel something ndedse deleted or added
to the Policy and Procedure, any petition recelwefre or after that
change comes about need to be held to the origwlady and Procedure.
Alderman Richbourg added with any petition a copthe Policy and
Procedure should be with it. Mitchell said no visteecessary this will be
the Policy and Procedure subject to the changetl. post it and put it in
the paper, even though we are not formally adomim@rdinance.

NEW BUSINESS

. 2008 Committee AppointmentsMayor Harper appointed standing
committees of the City Council whose duties shalbb provided by the
Council. This is in reference to Section 3-6 in @tearter. Mayor Harper
said with the Council’'s approval he would like fapaint Alderman



Richbourg as the Mayor Pro Tem as well as the P@&afety committee,
Alderwoman Sutton to Parks and Recreation/Cemeatehielerman Watts
to Street Department, Alderman Turner to Econongedlopment and
Sanitation, Alderman Stalnaker to the Gas Departaed Public Safety,
Alderman Retterbush the Water and Sewer DepartmAdohérman
Retterbush made a motion they accept the appoinsmalderman
Richbourg seconded the motion and the motion chtn@nimously.

. 2008 Alcohol License RenewaMayor Harper asked the Council to vote
on the few businesses who failed to turn in thememval applications for a
2008 Alcohol License. The businesses are Akrid@esN-Go, Gaskins
Grocery, KDR Foodmart, LLC, Lucy Corner, Pap’s dhd Stop & Shop.
Alderwoman Sutton asked if the City applies a pgral these businesses
for their late application. Mandy Luke, City Managaid the penalty is,
they are not allowed to sell any alcohol for thistftwo weeks of the New
Year. After some discussion, Alderman Richbourg enadnotion to
approve the renewal of alcohol license for the aldmysinesses. The motion
was seconded by Alderman Stalnaker, and the mo@iored unanimously.

. Opening of the Bids for a new Pipe Locator for th&as Department-
Peter Schultz, the Gas Department Supervisor, ablkee@ouncil’s approval
for bids on a new dual frequency pipe horn 800rhDecember 10s
Council meeting. Mayor Harper opened the bids aeg tvere as follows;
Pipe Horn Located Technology, from Birmingham Alaidaa bid: $1,213.00
which includes shipping and handling. G & C Suppbympany from
Atwood Tennessee, bid: $1,673.69, and HD SupplyeWatrks, bid:
$1,495.00. Alderman Turner made a motion to go Wiehlowest bid.
Alderman Stalnaker seconded the motion to go wiplke Plorn Located
Technology, and the motion carried unanimously.

. Opening Bids for an Asphalt Roller-Tommy Davis, the Street
Department Supervisor, asked the Council’'s apprimrddids on a new
asphalt roller on December™® Council meeting. Mayor Harper opened
the bids and they were as follows; United RentalmfValdosta, Ga., bid:
$9,024.77 for a new right arm roller, Wolf Pack @5@ith a one year
warranty on the roller and a two year warrantylmengine. Yancey
Brothers from Valdosta, Ga., Bid: $8,330.00 ongame roller with the
same warranty on the roller and engine. Trowel &fadm Suwannee, Ga.,
bid: $7,939.38 on the same roller but with no watyan the roller or the
engine. Alderman Turner made a motion to accepbithérom Yancey



Brothers, due to the fact they gave a warrantythadowest bidder did not.
The motion was seconded by Alderman Retterbushtrenthotion carried
unanimously.

. Grinding Yard Waste- Bill Alley of Alley Cats spoke to the group about
grinding the City’s yard waste this year. He sall&ACats has grinded the
yard waste for the City of Nashville for the pdstee years and would like
to request the opportunity to do so again this.yiar Alley said if this job
of grinding the City’s yard waste goes out for d bwould like to give a

bid on the job or construct a new contract so llezep the City’s business.
Mayor Harper said, since we are a part of Deeplt8aotid Waste we are
discussing going in together as a regional orgéinizavith Lowndes, and
Lanier County and purchasing the equipment, whithbe shared between
the three counties, to do the job. Mayor Harpet s have also discussed
renting the equipment and grinding the yard trasiselves.

. Ratify the Repair on Pump Motor for the Water Department- Mandy
Luke said on December 28, 2007 the City Council paked regarding the
pump motor for the water department. This pumpseduo pump
wastewater into the spay field. This is a 250hpandt needed to be
rewound at an estimated cost of $4,000.00 to $60000 he Council needs
to ratify the approval for this repair. Aldermanrfiar made a motion to
ratify the repair on the pump. Alderwoman Suttocoseled the motion and
the motion carried unanimously.

. Light Request for the Dog Pound-Chief Clayton asked the Council for a
street light to be installed at the City’'s Dog Pduihhe City’s Animal
Control person Jody Kelly said a light is needecefatering the facility at
night. He said the outside of the building haslale€ and a pole so a light is
all that is needed. The Council discussed instairmotion light instead of
a street light for the facility. Chief Clayton sdid will look into purchasing
a motion light if the K-9 budget permits. Mayorndar asked Alderman
Watts to look into installing a street light at 1¥&lba Street. Alderman
Turner asked Alderman Watts to also look into ilisiga street light on
North Taylor Street, between Sharon Street andiSAvenue.

. Request to call for Bids on a Pump for the Water Dgartment- John
Reynolds said the pump was included in last ydartdget, but was never
purchased. The Water Department tried to get bly thié old pump and we
have, but now the pump we have is shot, and wat §&,500.00 to fix it.



We use this particular pump every time a water igneusted, so we really
need to purchase a new one. John said the statsefaew pump are 3”
discharge with a 5hp Honda motor. Alderman Turnadena motion to
accept bids for a new pump. The motion was secohge&dderwoman
Sutton, and the motion carried unanimously.

REPORTS

10. City Manager’s/ Finance Director's Report- Mandy Luke told the group
she received a letter from DOT and they have ssdegtconstruction
company and awarded them a contract to handlertdyegb on Hazel
Avenue or the intersection at McDonalds on JandaB008. The company
selected is Reams and Sons Construction Compamyséth the letter does
not give a specific date as to when the projedtha@lunder way; it just
states construction on the project will begin digort

11. City Attorney Report- Mitchell Moore told the group he has the revised
copy of the Emergency Response Ordinance. He lsaiG@ouncil wanted
the agreement’s terms to read from December tomkeeg in which the
agreement will be automatically renewed for sudgessne year terms,
unless prior to ninety days before the end of tiiteal term or any
succeeding renewal term, either party to this Agre® notifies the other
party in writing that it does not desire to renéwg tagreement. In the event
of such notification, this Agreement and any rigghiutomatic renewals
shall terminate at the end of the current termchegtl said he also added a
provision to the Agreement which states Emergeraeyi€es will
indemnify and hold the City harmless. The conthet been reviewed and
the changes were accepted so now all we needitgiign it. Mitchell said
he will give the Council a copy of the agreementdeeived from the Rail
Road Company on Greenridge Drive. This Drive hanlmn the inventory
of the Rail Road and they are now saying it showidbe in their inventory,
in fact it should be listed as a private drive saadrive belonging to the
City, since Greenridge Drive was dedicated to thg. Ele said if the
Council agrees to sign this agreement we will Ispoasible for all
maintenance and upkeep to that cross road inclutmeglectronic signals.
He said this will end up costing the City a substg@mount of money in
the long run, so | recommend we do not sign theegent. Mitchell said a
copy of this contract will be given to each of theuncil for review.
Alderman Retterbush asked Mitchell about the laleselopment on the
monitoring of the wells. Mitchell said we signee ttontract and the



engineers are monitoring the situation as well askimg with EPD on the
wells, but I will follow up on that project.

12. Department Heads’ Report-Chief Clayton asked if the Police Committee
couldset up a meeting to discuss the probation matter.

PUBLIC COMMENTS/GENERAL COMMENTS FROM COUNCIL

Elaine Shiver, the County Administrator asked tloeiail to waive the water
tap fee for the new ball field. She said the Ciyg lalways helped waived fees
in the past for the County and asked if they wqshse waive the $1,400.00
water tap fee for this project. Alderman Richboorgde the motion to waive
the tap fee for the County’s new ball field. Thetioo was seconded by
Alderman Stalnaker, and the motion carried unanstyou

Dwight Bishop told the Council he is concerned dliba report which was
published in our local paper about those estabkstiewho have been accused
of selling alcohol to underage consumers, whatesécourse to revoking those
license or do they pay a penalty and continueasatihol. Mayor Harper said he
had the same concern, and was told on the firehe# the establishment is
fined and put on probation; however repeat offentleense can be revoked by
the Council. Mr. Bishop asked if we can change fiaaticular Ordinance so
these establishments have stiffer penalties. Msh@&p said our most precious
gift from God is our children and for these estsltinents to sell alcohol to
them is a terrible thing. He said their licensewtidoe revoked on the very first
offense. Mitchell said without having the code lefme, | think it reads, on the
second offense there is a suspension for a pefibche and then they can be
revoked or terminated on the third offense. Aldernharner said we can adopt
a first time offender suspension of license, andld/¢ike to see that done.
Alderman Richbourg asked what part the State rey@hays in regulating that.
Chief Clayton said we conduct stings and chargesii@blishment from a local
level and the State charges them from a State. |&veh local level we charge
the individual clerks who sell the alcohol to thenar. The State charges the
personal business license of the establishmentihenfirst offence is usually a
fine, the second is a suspension, and the thudusally termination of their
license with the State. Alderman Turner said waukhtwok into changing our
Ordinance to read, a fine and a suspension ontablisbments first offense.
Mitchell said he will look into changing the Ordimnze.

Alderman Turner said about a few years ago, we ragmemise to pave
Virginia Street once it was developed and havedsaib do so. We need to see
if we can get some state money to pave that street.



Alderman Stalnaker said he would like to say somegtto the residence on
Avera Street. The Mayor and | are talking to sornide DOT personnel about
our request of painting that street. Mayor Haréd $1r. Herrington with the
DOT advised us that since the change of a Chairmtdre DOT, the small
favors or project that were or are being done aalstowns is being watched.
He said all we can do is put our request in andiilesend it to Atlanta.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

Alderwoman Sutton made a motion to go into exeeusssion at 7:08 pm.
The motion was seconded by Alderman Retterbushttenchotion carried
unanimously.

Alderman Richbourg made a motion to come out otetiee session at 7:45
pm. Alderman Retterbush seconded the motion, andtition carried
unanimously.

REGULAR MEETING RECONVENED

Mitchell said the situation is Jack Donaldson hasemals in a warehouse
which is owned by Judge Dane Perkins. Mr. Donaldgas told last year to
remove these materials because big trucks coulttanadl on the street where
the warehouse is located. Alderman Turner askelémiry Yawn our Code
Enforcer could look in the warehouse and see rietlaee any EPD violations, if
so call Bill Lucas in Albany. Alderman Richbourgdgreed and wanted Henry
to approach Dane Perkins about the situation withauing to involve anyone
else right now. Mitchell advised we could possipét into an inverse
condemnation litigation case with them if we aré cereful and follow the
correct procedures. Alderman Turner said we haveady given Mr.
Donaldson the opportunity to remove the materi@mfthe warehouse.
Mitchell reviewed the resolution he prepared a yegr. Alderman Turner said
he is currently operating in town on Middle Sch@aicle, without a business
license. Alderwoman Sutton said she has not seebtraldson on Middle
School Circle recently. The Council agreed to Hsitehell get with Henry
Yawn and try to handle the situation before going farther.



ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to conduct, AlderR&hbourg made a motion to
adjourn the meeting at 7:55p.m. Alderman Stalnakeonded the motion and the
motion carried unanimously.

Mayor Travis Harper

Alderman Bill Turner Alderwoman Pat Sutton
Alderman J. P. Watts Alderman Billy Reltiesh
Alderman Scott Stalnaker Aldan Michael Richbourg
ATTEST

Johnny Hall, City Clerk



